

By-Laws

Greater Atlanta UK Alumni Club Of the University of Kentucky Alumni Association

June 30, 2008

I. Name

The name of this organization shall be the **Greater Atlanta UK Alumni Club of the University of Kentucky Alumni Association.**

II. Meetings

This organization shall hold at least one business meeting annually, which can be in conjunction with other events being carried on by the club. The notice of all annual meetings shall be communicated by announcement on the official web site of the club and the UK Alumni Association and also may be communicated from time to time by other communication means.

III. Board of Directors

- i) This organization shall be governed by a *Board of Directors* consisting of not less than seven members, of which the presence of at least one-half shall constitute a quorum. All duly elected officers and the last two past presidents shall automatically be Board members. Any remaining members are to be elected from the membership.
- ii) Board members (other than officers that serve two year terms and past presidents) shall be elected on an annual basis by those present at the applicable meeting. Any vacancy thereafter may be filled by a vote of a majority of the Board present at any meeting, assuming it is a quorum.
- iii) Board members must be dues-paying alumni or associate members of the University of Kentucky Alumni Association.
- iv) Members of the Greater Atlanta UK Alumni Club who are serving as members of the University of Kentucky Alumni Association Board of Directors will serve as ex-officio members of the Board of Directors.
- v) Notice of Board meetings shall be made through the club web site, and also may be communicated from time to time by other communication means.

IV. Officers

The officers of the organization may consist of a president, president-elect, secretary, treasurer, young alumni president, and various vice presidents as identified by the president and the officers from time to time. They shall be elected to two-year terms by the entire membership of the organization. Officers must be dues-paying alumni or associate members of the University of Kentucky Alumni Association. The president may appoint officers in an interim period in the event that a new office is created with the approval of a majority of the current officers, or in the event that an officer resigns his position prior to the expiration of his term.

V. Duties of the Officers

- i) The president shall preside at all meetings of the organization and perform such duties as may be attendant to said office or as may be imposed upon him by the Board of Directors of the organization.
- ii) The president-elect shall perform all the duties of the president in case of his absence or disability. In such cases where both the president and president –elect are absent, the president may appoint an officer to carry on these duties.
- iii) The secretary shall keep minutes of all proceedings and keep the records of those proceedings.
- iv) The treasurer shall receive and be in charge of all money and property of the organization and keep proper account thereof and shall turn over to his or her successor records, property, and money of the organization. An annual report of the accounting of the organization shall be completed in the spring of every year for its inclusion in the clubs annual report required to be made to the University of Kentucky Alumni Association.
- v) The young alumni vice president shall preside at and assist in organizing all meetings of the young alumni.
- vi) Any additional vice presidents may from time to time be elected or appointed as determined by the officers and/or the Board of Directors. Such assignments shall be specific such as planning of events, organizing the organizations efforts in the college fairs, the handling of communications for the organization and etc.
- vii) It is understood that at any one time one or more of these officer positions may not be filled; however at all times there must be at a minimum, the president, secretary and treasurer. Each officer shall automatically serve as a member of the Board of Directors for his or her term of office.

VI. Election of Directors and Officers

Members of the Board of Directors, including all officers, shall be chosen at the annual business meeting in Section II above. Nominations shall also be accepted from the membership.

VII. Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of this organization shall be July 1 to June 30.

VIII. Amendments

These by-laws may be amended from time to time by a majority vote of the membership or by a two-thirds vote of the Board of Directors and with the consent and approval of the University of Kentucky Alumni Association.